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March 10.2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACnON

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Glencliff Home, to enter into a
Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Archways (VC# 310158), Tilton, NH, for the
continued provision of onsite substance use disorder management services at Glencliff Home, by
exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price iimitation by $4,800 from $4,200 to
$9,000 and extending the completion date from June 30. 2025 to June 30, 2027, effective Juiy 1,
2025, upon Governor and Council approvai. 47% General Funds. 53% Other Funds (Agency
Income).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on November 8, 2023, item
#32.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget iine items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-d1-910010-57100000, Health and Social Services, Dept of Health and Human
Services, HHS; Glencliff Home, Glencliff Home, Professional Care

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 046-500464 Consultants 91000000 $1,800 $0 $1,800

2025 046-500464 Consultants 91000000 $2,400 $0 $2,400

2026 046-500464 Consultants 91000000 $0 $2,400 $2,400

2027 046-500464 Consultants 91000000 $0 $2,400 $2,400

Subtotal $4,200 $4,800 $9,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires ali amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor provides cost
effective, onsite. substance use disorder management services during the required timeframes.



Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council
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This request is being presented to the Governor and Executive Council because the Department
has a cumulative total of over $10,000 in contracts with the Contractor within this State Fiscal
Year. In accordance with MOP 150.

The purpose of this request is to exercise an available contract renewal option to continue
to provide ohsite substance use disorder management services to Glencliff Home residents. The
Contractor will continue to provide sen/ices a minimum of two (2) days per month for a minimum
of 30 minutes each day and will ensure substance use disorder management services focus on
the strengths and resilience of the residents as welj as promote self-directed approaches to care.

Approximately 65 Individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027.

The Contractor will continue to provide recovery coaching to residents designed to
increase knowledge of the individual's substance use disorder; strengthen or acquire new coping
skills; Improve self-efficacy; achieve, maintain and sustain recovery; and improve self-care skills.

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing the monthly documentation
provided by the Contractor.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the .original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising its option to renew services for two
(2) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, residents of Glencliff Home
may not receive the substance use disorder management services needed to achieve, maintain
and sustain recovery.

Area served: Glencliff Home.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respegtfully cubmittod,

Lorl A. Weaver

Commissioner

Thz Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Management contract is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Archways ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 8, 2023 (Item #32), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the, parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2027

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$9,000

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 2.0, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through C-4, Budget.

4. Add Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit C-4, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
,  reference herein.

Archways

SS-2024-GLENCLIFF-01 -SUBST-01-A01

v7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 1 of 3

'Initial

Contractor Initials

Date
3/6/2025
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

3/7/2025

Date

-OocuSigned by:

\. BP88Tsaptepoae4-—:——
Name:.i^ Toad Bickford

Title: Executive Director

Archways

3/6/2025

Date

—Slgncdby:

J)r. Awt Wo/iMau,
• 211BD4009D1DJ15..

Name: Mark watman
Title. President/coo

Archways

SS-2024.GLENCLIFF-01 -SUBST-01-A01
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL ' "

>OocuSlon«d by:EDocuSkQn^d by:
3/26/2025 fcUlvlVVO

Date Name: Robyn Cuarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE.

Date Name:

Title:

Archways A-S-1.3

SS-2024-GLENCLIFF-01 -SUBST-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Archways
Budget Request for: Substance Abuse

Budget Period SFY 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 15.00%,

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages $1,585
2. Fringe Benefits $502

3. Consultants ■  - . ■ $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0;

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(0) Supplies - Pharmacy $0'

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.{e) Supplies Office .  • $o_
6. Travel $0

7. Software . $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications ■  $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training • $0

8. (c) Other - Other, (specify below) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) . $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $2,087

Total Indirect Costs $313.

TOTAL $2,400

SS-2024-GLENCLIFF-01-SUBST-01-A01

G^lnitial
M.Di

Date:
3/6/2025
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Exhibit C-4 Budget, Amendment #1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Archways

Budget Request for: Substance Abuse~

Budget Period SFY 2027

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)0

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages $1,585
2. Fringe Benefits $502-

3. Consultants ■- $0
4. Equipment .
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0
5.(c) Supplies - Phaimacy $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0
5.(e) Supplies Office $0
6. Travel -  - . $0
7. Software $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0-

Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0-
Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts -$0-
Total Direct Costs $2,087

Total Indirect Costs $313

TOTAL $2,400

SS-2024-GLENCUFF-01-SUBST-01-A01 Contractor Initials:

r—Initial
Date:

3/6/2025



Docusign Envelope ID: D50C7D7D-3552-4B9D-9F0A-3E762804BEB7

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secreiar>' of Slate of the State of New Mampshire. do hereby certify that ARCHWAYS is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 09, 2015. i further certify that all

fees and documents required by the Sccretar)' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofTice is

concerned.

Business ID: 733566

Certificate Number: 0007066035

Ar

B&.

^3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 25th day of Februarj'A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Brad Davis

I.' , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

Archways
1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on October 9 20 24 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date) , . . . . ,
Dr. Mark watman, vice President/ COO

VOTED: That (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Archways
is duly authorized on behalf of to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3; I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

y  Ugmdbjr:

3/19/2025
Dated:

^  smramaaeio.

Signature of Elected Officer
Name;

Title:

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LCOONEY

DATE {MM/DOftTYY)

3/27/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND. OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

A W Frost Agency, Inc.
354 Central Street
Franklin, NH 03235

CONTACT
NAME:

E«): (603) 934-3319 Ne):(603) 934-7227

INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A Mount Vernon Fire Insurance

INSURED

Archways
5 Prospect St
Tiiton, NH 03276

INSURER B Proaressive Insurance .Grouo 24252

INSURERC AmTrust North America. Inc.

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CUIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
INSD

SUBR
WVD POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GE NERAL LIABILITY

)E I X 1 OCCUR NPP2567856G 2/1/2025 2/1/2026

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

j CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED J  .100,000

MED EXP (Anv orte oersoni
J  5,000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY
5  1,000,000

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
J  3,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 1 1 LOC
OTHER;

PRODUCTS. COMP/OP AGG
J  3,000,000

s

B 1 AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 1
00943918 1/27/2025 7/27/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT J  1,000,000

ANY AL/TO

IHEDULED
ITOS

BODILY INJURY (Per oersoni s
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

sc
. AL BODILY INJURY (Per acddent) s

NC
. AL

1
UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE 1
EACH OCCURRENCE s

AGGREGATE $

DED 1 1 RETENTIONS s

C WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ^ / n
ANYPR0PRIET0R/PARTNER«>«CUT1VE ("771

■  LnJ
If yes, describe under
DFRCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS helfw

HI A

WWC3772294 4/2/2025 4/2/2026

1 STATIITF 1 1 Fr""
e.L. EACH ACCIDENT

J  100,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
J  100,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
1 s 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Addllional Remarks Schedule, m«y be atuehed If more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

J
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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ARCHWAYS
Archways Community Resource Centers - Tilton, Franklin, Concord, Plymouth

MISSION: To strengthen and empower families and the Archways Community
Resource Center communities by promoting health, well-being, and self-sufficiency ■

through positive relationships, support, collaboration, and education

VISION: To be a Community Resource Center of Quality, certified by the Council on
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services and the National Standards of Quality
for Family Resource Centers... a place where all community members feel welcomed to
ask questions and find connections to information and resources that strengthen and
empower the people of our community.
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^CHWAYS
ARCHWAYS

Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021

and

Independent Auditor's Report

^  ,
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ARCHWAYS
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December 31, 2022 and 2021
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^Vachon Clukay C K R T y F / h l> PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

608 Chestnut Street • Manchester. New Hampshire 03104xTv "DV^ t..nc$inut street • Manchester. New Hampshire 03104C2. AA_/!Vlrr\lN Y l ̂  (603) 622-7070 • Fax: (603) 622-1432 • www,vachonclukay.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Archways

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Archways (a nonprofit organization), which
comprise the staternents of financial position as of December 3), 2022 and 2021, aiid the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Archways as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
Archways and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

• appropriate to provide a basis fqr our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt Archways ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Rcsponsibilitles for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
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aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism through the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness Archways internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Archways ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time..

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Manchester, New Hampshire
February 28,2025
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ARCHWAYS

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31; 2022 and 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS;

Cash

Grants and contracts receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ■

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land

Construction in process
Buildings and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Equipment, vehicles, and fixtures

Less accumulated depreciation
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. NET

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Deposits

Right-of-use asset, net
TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

2022

443,663

171,481

99

8,499

623.742

72,700

255,456

21,230

73,967

423,353

(67,355)

355,998

3,800

73,691

77.491

2021

293,060

152,117

7,600

452,777

72,700

255,456

21,230

62,467

411,853
(39,468)

372,385

6,300

6,300

TOTAL ASSETS $  1,057,231 831,462

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES;

Accounts payable

Accnicd payroll and benefits
Other liabilities

Deferred revenue

Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of lease liability
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES;

Notes payable

Lease liability
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

33,006

28,662

12,508

20,713

6,796
46,952

148.637

173,934

27,939

201,873

9,780

25,086

665

21,800

6,478

63,809

180,729

180,729

TOTAL LIABILITIES 350,510 244,538

NET ASSETS;

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignatcd
Board designated
With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions
TOTAL NET ASSETS

519,302

10,000

177,419

706,721

576,924

10,000

586,924

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS .057,231 831,462

See notes tofinancial statements

3
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ARCHWAYS

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS -

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Contributions $ 19,825 $ 13,534
Government grants and contracts 1,421,504 1,232,127
Other income 272 • 32,778

Recovery coaching - 87,562 . 1 10,650

Lease income 52,947 23,380

Debt forgiveness 14,335
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 1,582,1 10 1.426.804

EXPENSES:

Program services:

Peer recovery and support 897,553 724,049
Family support and parent education 389,231 286,700

Forever hope training center 105,220 60,223

Total program services 1,392,004 , 1,070,972

Supporting services:

Management and general x . 247,728 ' 196,646

Total supporting services 247,728 196,646

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,639,732 1,267,618

TOTAL INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (57,622) ' 159,186

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Government grants and contracts 177,419

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 177,419

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 119,797 159,186

NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 586,924 427,738

NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 . $ 706,721 $ 586,924

See notes tofinancial slatemenls

-4
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ARCHWAYS

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Program Services

Peer Family Support Forever Total Management
Recovery and Parent Hope Training • Program and

SuDDort ' Education Center Services '  . General Total.

Personnel S  616,705 -$ 217,934 $ $  834,639 S ■ 92,738 S  927,377
Occupancy 75,717 1,010 76,727 24,230 100,957
Contract labor 45,341 ■ 26,158 59,292 130,791 43,596 174,387
Travel 8,015 -176 616 ■ 8,807 8,807
Program supplies 17,211 33,915 ■ 37,964 89,090 12,149 101,239
Payroll taxes 49,091 17,348 - 66,439 •  7,382 73,821
Communications 22,315 12,919 t  - 35,234 11,745 . 46,979
Insurance 3,779 - • 3,779 18,451 22,230
Training 1,692 979 6,233 8,904 . 8,904
Depreciation 7,251 12,828 1,115 -  21,194 6,693 27,887
Professional fees 2,324 8,365 -  " 10,689 929 11,618
Other expenses 48,112 57,599 - 105,711 29,815 135,526
Total S  897,553 $  389,231 $  105,220 $  1,392,004 $  247,728 $  1,639,732

See notes tofinancial statements
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ARCHWAYS

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Program Services

Peer Family Support Forever Total Management
Recovery and Parent Hope Training Program and

SuDDort • Education Center Services General Total

Personnel $  508,162 $  179,576 ■$ ' - S  687,738 S  76,415 S  764,153
Occupancy ■  69,885 932 - 70,817 22,363 93,180
Contract labor 27,998 16,152 36,612 80,762 26,921 107,683
Travel 7,774 171 598 8,543 ' 8,543
Program supplies 5,796 11,422- 12,786 30,004 4,091 ■ 34,095
Payroll taxes 42,041 14,857 - 56,898 6,322 63,220
Communications 13,577 7,860 - 21,437 7,146. 28,583
Insurance 5,430 - - 5,430 26,510 31,940
Training 2,535 1,468 ■ 9,339 13,342 - 13,342
Depreciation 5,770 10,209 888 16,867 5,326 22,193
Professional fees 855 3,078 - 3,933 342 4,275
Other expenses 34,226 40,975 - 75,201 21,210 96,411
Total $  724,049 S  286,700 S  60,223 S  1,070,972 S  196,646 $  1,267,618

See notes tofinancial statements
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ARCHWAYS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

\

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in net assets S  1 19,797 $  159,186

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: •

Depreciation 27,887 .22,193

Debt forgiveness (14,335)

Reduction in carrying amount of right-of-use assets 46,651

Changes In operating assets and liabilities:

.  ' (19,364)Grants and contracts receivable (31,628)

Accounts receivable (99)

Prepaid expenses (899) (7,007)

Deposits 2,500 (3,800)

Accounts payable 23,226 6,693

Accrued payroll and benefits 3,576 12,419

Other liabilities 11,843 (16,213)

Deferred revenue (1,087) 21,800

Lease liability (45,451)

Net Cash Provided b^Operating Activities 168,580 149,308

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment • (11,500) (59,259)

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (11,500) (59,259)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
!

Payments on notes payable (6,477) (40,838)

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities , (6,477) (40,838)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 150,603 49,211

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 293,060 243,849

Cash and cash equivalents, ending of year $  443,663 $  293,060

Non-Cash Supplemental Disclosures;

Right-of-use assets upon ASC 842 implementation:

Operating leases $  120,342

j

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information: -

Cash paid for interest expense $  8,874 $  9,591

Operating cash outflows from operating leases $  . 46,100

See notes tofinancial statements
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ARCHWAYS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

Archways (the Organization) was organized in 2015 and is dedicated to strengthening and empowering
families and the community by promoting health, well-being, and self-sufficiency through positive
relationships, support, collaboration and education.

The Organization has the following programs:

Peer Recovery Supper! - Programs of Peer Recovery Support are intended to help individuals and
families initiate and sustain recovery from problematic alcohol and drug use. These
include comprehensive coaching, telephone support, a fitness program, cafes which promote healthy
social connection and positive, generative discussion of topics to support, recovery, benefit navigation,
healthcare navigation, and more.

Family Supper! and Paren! EducaHon - Family support services include comprehensive family support
home visiting, a Caregiver and child playgroup, kinship family support both center-based and home
visiting, and parent cafes to promote healthy social connection. Family support services promote
protective factors for families: Parental resilience, Healthy Social Connection, Concrete Supports in
Times of Need, Knowledge of Childhood, Development, and Social-Emotional Competence of Children.
These are considered primary prevention technologies to reduce child abuse and neglect and promote
family strengthening and self-sufficiency. Parent'education includes multiple curriculum delivery to
parents and kinship caregivers including: Parenting the Second Time Around, Active Parenting Birth to 5,
Active Parenting of Teens, Nurturing Skills, Parenting Journey in Recovery, Positive Solutions for
Families. Parent Education classes are structured evidence based experiences for parents and caregivers
that promote skills to enhance the protective factors for family support and strengthening. x

Forever Hope Training Cenler - Our training program is dedicated to high quality training for the field of
Peer Recovery Support Services and Family Support Services. We offer the CEU approved trainings of
The Art & Science of Peer Recovery Support, The Art,& Science of Ethical Considerations for Peer
Support Work, Suicide Prevention, HIV/AID/HEP Prevention, Co-Occurring Disorders for Peer Support
Workers, Supporting Families Affected by Opioid Use Disorder and more.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Organization conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as applicable to non-profit entities, except as indicated hereafter, The following
is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The
Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities'according to
the following net asset classifications:
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ARCHWAYS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Net Assets Wilhoul Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and
may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net

_ ^sets may be used at the discretion of management and the Board of Directors.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. ^

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues from program services arc recorded when earned. Other miscellaneous revenues are recorded
upon receipt.

Recognition of Contributions and Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is, in
substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in net
assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is
recognized. All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor
restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor

■restrictions arc-reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of demand deposits,
cash on hand, restricted cash, and all highly liquid investments with a maturity.of 90 days or less.

V  2^ 2021
As presented on the Statement of Financial Position:

Cash $ 443,663 $ 293,060

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property and equipment is recorded at fair value
determined as of the date of the donation. The Organization's policy is to capitalize expenditures for
equipment and major improvements with a cost in excess of $1,000 and to charge to operations currently
for expenditures which do not extend the lives of related assets in the period incurred. Depreciation is
computed, using the straight-line method at rates intended to amprtize the cost of related assets over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
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ARCHWAYS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Years

Leasehold improvements 3
Buildings and improvements 25

. Equipment, vehicles, and fixtures 5-7

Depreciation expense was $27,887 and $22,193 for the years ended December 31, 2022 arid 2021,
respectively. " •

Leases

The Organization leases office space (operating leas^ in Concord, New Hampshire. The determination of
whether an arrangement is a lease is made at the lease's inception. Under ASC 842, a contract is (or
contains) a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is defined under the standard as having both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and the right to direet the use of the asset. '
Management only reassesses its determination if the terms and conditions of the contract are changed.

Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use (ROU) assets, other current liabilities, and an
operating lease liability on-the balance sheet.

I

ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease liabilities represent
the obligation to make lease payments. Operating'lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at the
lease commencement date based on the present value of the future minimurh lease payments over the
lease term. The operating leases did not provide an implicit interest rate, therefore the Organization uses
the risk free rate at the lease commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments.
Lease expense for operating lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Compensated Absences

All employees of the Organization working 20 hours or more earn paid time off. A maximum of 25 days-
may be earned based on years of service. Employees may cariy over up to 25 days from one calendar year
to the next. Upon termination of employment up to 5 days of accrued and unused personal time off is paid
to employees.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition ,

The Organization recognizes eontributions, donations and miscellaneous income when cash is received.
Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of
return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

The Organization also has revenue derived from costYeimbursabie federal and state contracts and grants,
which are conditional upon certain performance requirements and/or incurrencc of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue without donor restrictions when the Organization
has met those performance requirements or incurred expenditures in compliance with the specific contract
or grant provisions. Amounts received pnor to meeting performance requirements or incurring qualifying
expenditures are reported as either advances from grantors or revenue with donor restrictions, dependent
upon contribution terms and conditions. Amounts not yet received, but already awarded are recorded as
grants and contracts receivable.

10
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ARCHWAYS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 202 i

The Organization recognizes revenue from contracts with customers in the form of eharges for recovery
coach sessions when those services are provided to an individual. There was m beginning or en ing
balances of receivables, contract assets or contract liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021. ■ . - . .

Rp.cnverv Coach Sessions

Charges for recovery coach sessions are invoiced monthly. Charges are based on the type of service
orovided and do not incoiporate variable consideration. The Organization recognizes revenue tor
recovery'coach.sessions at the point in time when services are provided. The Organization recognizes a
receivable for services provided in advance of payment being received.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presentsThe natural classification detail ot ■
expenses by funetion.

-The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more, than one
orogram OLSupporting function. Directly identifiable expenses are eharged entirely to the program or
supporting service benefited. Certain indirect costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited based on estimates of time and effort.

Bad Debts

The Organization uses the'reserve method for accounting for bad debts. No allowance has been recorded
as of Decemb,er-31, 2022 and 2021, because management of the Organization believes that all outstanding
receivables.are fully collectible.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Organization has received a determination letter from-the Internal Revenue Service stating that it
qualifies for tax-exempt status under Section 501(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code for any exempt
funetion income. In addition, the Organization is not subject to state income taxes. Accordingly, no
provision has been made for Federal or State income taxes.

FASB Accounting Standards-Codification Topic 740 entitled AccounUngfor Income Taxes requires the
Organization to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Organization had no
uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2022 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax
benefits that need to be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements

11
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ARCHWAYS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, grants and contracts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried
in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term
nature of the transactions. The fair values detennined for financial instruments are estimates, which for
certain accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate
liquidation.

NOTE 2—ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued guidance (Accounting
Standards Codification [ASC] 842, Leases) to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities on the balance
sheet. Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of ROU assets and lease
liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases. Under the standard, disclosures are
"required to meet the objective of enabling users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases.

The Organization adopted the standard effective January 1, 2022, and recognized and measured leases
existing at, or entered into afler, January 1, 2022 (the beginning of the period of adoption) through a
cumulative effect adjustment, with certain practical expedients available. Lease disclosures for the year
ended December 31, 2021, are made under prior lease guidance in FASB ASC 840.

As a result of the adoption of the new lease standard, the Organization recognized operating right-of-use
assets and a lease liability of $120,342. The lease liability represents the present value of the remaining
lease payments discounted using the risk free rate of 1.00%. There was no cumulative effect adjustment to
the opening balance of net assets required.

NOTE 3—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Organization regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and
other contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds.

The following table reflects the Organization's financial assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
reduced by amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement
of financial position date because of donor and other restrictions or internal board designations. Amounts
not available include the board designated funds, in the event the need arises to utilize the board
designated funds for liquidity purposes, the reserves could be drawn upon through approval by the Board
of Directors.

Financial assets available for general expenditure', reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their use
. and internal board designations, within one year of the statemcnt of financial position date, comprise the
following:

12
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ARCHWAYS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Cash and equivalents $  443,663 $  293,060

Accounts receivable 99

Grants and contracts receivable 171,481 152.117

Total Financial Assets 615,243 445,177

Less:

Board designated operating reserve (10,000) (10,000)

Net assets with donor restrictions (177,419)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $  427,824 $  435,177

4—CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains bank deposits at local financial institutions located in New Hampshire. The
Organization's demand deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance'Corporation (FDIC) up to a
total of $250,000. At December 31, 2022, the Organization's cash was uninsured in the amount of
$ 185,094 and fully insured at December 31, 2021.

NOTE 5—GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Grants and contracts receivable, by funding category, consist of the following at December 31, 2022 and
2021:

2022 2021

Lakes Region Community Services . • $ 8,526
■  State of NH DHHS S 21,960 . 37,703

Harbor Homes 67,954 79,873

■ NH Children's Trust 26,015

Granite United Way 27,634
$  117,548 ■ $ 152,117

NOTE 6—NOTES PAYABLE

The Organization's obligations under notes payable consist of the following as of December 3 i, 2022 and
2021:

2022 2021

Note payable, due in monthly installments of$l,279,
including interest at 4.75% through June 7, 2025.
Variable interest rate thereafter, based on Federal

Home Loan Bank 5 Year Classic Advance Rule plus

2.50%. Balloon payment for unpaid principal and

interest due May 7, 2040. Secured by building. $ 180,729 $ 187,207

Less: Current Portion (6,796) (6,478)

Long Temi Debt $ 173,933 $^180^7^

13
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 3 i, 2022 and 2021

Future maturities of notes payable as of December 31, 2022 are as follows:

• Year Ended

December 31.

2023 $ 6,796

2024 7,107

2025 7,481

2026 7,849

2027 8,236
Thereafter 143,259

$  180,728"

NOTE 7—LEASE COMMITMENTS - PRIOR TO ADOPTION OF ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic
8'42)

The below lease disclosures for the year ended December 31, 2021, were made under prior lease guidance
in accordance with FASB ASC 840, Leases.

The Organization entered into a lease for office space located in Tilton, New Hampshire through February
2021. Payments under the terms of the agreement are $2,5()0 per month. During August 2021, the
Organization entered into a lease agreement for office space located in Concord, New Hampshire through
July 2024. Payments under the terms of the agreement are $3,800 per month, increasing $100 annually.
Lease expense for the year ending December 31, 2021 was $27,800.

NOTE 8—LEASE LIABILITY - AFTER ADOPTION OF ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842)

The Organization has a single operating'lease for office space, as previously noted (See Note 7). Lease
options that the Organization believes are reasonably certain to exercise are included in the measurement
of the lease assets and liabilities. The lease term is used for the amortization life of the lease asset. The
terms of the lease are through July 2024. The Organization has measured the lease liability using the risk
free rate of 1.00% as of the effective date of the lease.

The maturities of the lease liability as of December 31, 2022 are as follows:

Year Ended

December 31. Operating

2023 S 47,300

2024 28,000
Total Lease Payments • 75,300
Less: Interest (409)
Present Value of Lease Liability $_^^7439^

The following summarizes the line items in the statements of activities which include the components of
lease expense and costs for the year ended December 31, 2022:

2022

Operating lease expense included in program
services and management and general expenses ^ IQQ

14
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ARCHWAYS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) *:
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 /

NOTE 9—LEASES

The Organization leases and subleases ofTicc space to independent organizations from its Franklin and
Concord locations. The ofFice space leases"do not transfer ownership of the leased assets and do not
provide an option for the lessees to purchase the assets. The office space leases are operating lease
agreements with terms 12 months or fewer. Each lease agreement contains an option to extend for an
additional 12-month term, with a total of four option terms. These agreements are cancelablc at any time
during the term, provided there is 90-days' notice given.

Cash receipts from operating leases are classified within cash flows from operating activities. For the
years ended December31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization recognized sublease income of $38,050 and
$7,500, respectively, which is included in lease income on the Statement of Activities.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of the underlying assets related to operating leases:

Buildings and improvements $ 255,456
Less: Accumulated depreciation (23,047)
Total cost, net $ 232,409

NOTE 10—CONTINGENCIES

The Organization participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amounts, if any, of
additional expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be determined at this time,
although the Organization expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 11—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During October 2023, the Organization entered into a promissory note payable agreement for the
purchase of a building in the amount of $335,000 at 5.50%. The note calls for" monthly payments of
$3,853 for 10 years, with a ballon payment of all unpaid principal and interest on November 1,-2033.

During June 2024, the Organization extended its lease of the Concord office space for an additional 3 year
term through July 2027.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 28, 2025, which is the dale the financial
statements were available to be issued.

y  .
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Archways Eoard of Directors 2025

Contact Information Affiliation Office Year

appointed

Term#

1. Brad Davis

>

Attorney

Davis Hunt Law

President - 2018 2018-2

019

2020-2

021

2022-2
•  1 p-~-

023

2. Andrea

Jergensen

Vv

Behavioral Specialist

Health First

Secretary 2022 2022^2

'023
2024-2

025

2026-0

227

3. Lori-Ann

Bolduc

Bank Manager

Franklin Savings Bank

Treasurer 2022 2022-2
p--;?—

: 023

2024-2

025

2026-2

027

4. Donna

Toomey.

•

Certified Patient

Navigator

Health Market

Connect NH

A •

2023 2023-2

b"24'
2025-2

026

2027-2

028

5.

Stephanie

Wolff

-

Project Director

Franklin Partners in

Prevention

2023 2023-2

024

2025-2

026

2027-2

028
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LNA

09/2007 to 10/2012

Concord Reglpnai;>^5fitlng Nurse Asspdatlon
Concord

Provjd^, basic pa'tieht care by bathing and gfoomlhg
patientsVchanging bedding and assi^^^^ In feeding
activities.

Recognized and reported ̂abnormalities or changes in
patients' health status to riursing staff fprjrnniedia^^^
assessrneril.

took patients' blood p'ressure. temperature
and pulse ..and docurnehted height a_nd
weight, Engaged ,with patient-fanriliy anO
friendsto prpvl.de cpui^eous yisit'
.expenehce.
Delivered a high level of(care,to every'palieht

bocurhen'ted patient intakeiand.dietary cequirements.and alded
with'feeding and morijtorihg.

LNA

04/2004, to 06^007

Concord Hospital

•Concord NH

Assisted patieri'ts"witt^:shaving, bathihg and oral hygierie to
promote healthy, habits and overall weHness. Conducted
routine checks.on'patient vitals, blood pre^,Lire, blood,
sugar and heart.rate: Answered signal lights, bells and ̂
Tequestsrfor-seryice to assistpatient services fulflllmenL,
beliyered'a highilevelpLcare to.every"patient
Exhibited compassionate care and;cbmrtiunicatibh'
regarding issues surrounding death and .dying,
Herfprrned EKGs bh Patiente
\Secretanal,putJes

LNA
■07/2003-16 07/2004

Pre.sldential Oaks
Concord NH

Facilitated'activities of daijy living; personal,
hygiene "management, feeding and .
ambulatibn. Collected and documented, vital
signs to track current patient conditions.
Recognized arid reported abnormalities or changes In
patients' health statiistp nursing staff for irprnl^iate,
assessment
Engaged vvith patient family arid fnends.to provide cpuiteous visit
experience.-
Managed and maintained patient rooms,-shaf^-living areas.and
nursing stations.

LEADERSHIP
As a goal oriented brganized.Individual, l-h'ave had many," opportunities
tp bein ajeadershipipositipriia.nd help.totrain lhpse;uhderme,.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

.  /

j  KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Archways

NAME- JOB TITLE.

ANNUAL AMOUNT

PAID FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL SALARY

Tonya Brown - Coulombe Recovery Goach $1,585.00 $57,762.00

$0.00 $0.00

. $0.00 $0.00

- $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00
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.Lorl A. ,Wflirer
C^nisstftner

UTo^ekkford
Admlnblrtior

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEP^TMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

gLencliffhome

393 HIGH STREET, PO BOX 76, GLENCLIEF. NH 03138
603-989^111 Fcx: <^989^30^

TOD.Act^: 1:800-735-2964 www.dhblJJh.gov

October 3,-2023

iHls Excoilencyj Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arid the.Honbr^le Council,

State House '
Concord, New Haitipshire 03301

. REQUESTED ACHON

Aphorize the Department of Hea|th;arid Human Services, Gjenciiff Home; to;enter'ln^^ a,
sole Source contract With Archways ̂ C# 310158), Tllton. NH. in the amount of $4i200 for the.
provision of onsite substance, use disorder piariagernent servi^s at Glencliff, Home, .with ttie
optidh-tb rOhew for upto;fdur.(4):addrtionaryear8.^e^ upon Gbvernor.and Council approval
throughJune^, 2025; 31 .'49®A Ge^ral Funda 68.5'l %.Other Funds (Agenpyln^ "

Funds are. available in the following account for State-Fiscal Years 2024; ahd 2025, with
the-authorilyrtb .adjust budget line, items within the price limitation and encumbrances between,
state fiscal.yeara through the-Budget Office, Ifnebded and justifled.
05-95-091-910010-5710 Health 'and Social Services Dept of Health and Human Services,
:HHS: Glencliff Home, Professional Care

State

Fiscal
Year

Class / Account Class title Job Number

(

Total Amount

-2024 046-5004^ Cdnsultarits 91000000 :$1.806

■2025 046-500464 i Consultant 91000000 $2,400'

Subtotal $4;200

EXPLANATION

this request Is Sole Source because the Contractor Is the only known vendor able to
provide'thWnbcessary services onsite at Glencliff- Home-during the required limeframes. This
reqdest Is being presented id the Governor and Executive Courici] because the Departmeht has
a cumulative total df-over $10,000 In contracts with the Cpntractpr within this State Fiscal Year,
in accordance with MOP 150.

The purpose of this r^uest is to provide onsite substance use disorder management
eeryices' to Glencliff Home residerits:- the" Contractor will provide services a minitnum of two (2)
days per month for a mlnlmurn of 30 minutes each day and will ensure substance use.disorder'
management berWces focus on the strengths and resilience of the residents as well as promote
self^dlrected approaches to care;
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Pa^e 2 of 2

The Contractor will provide recovery coaching to residents designed to increase
knowledge of the individual's substance use disorder; strengthen or acquire new coping skills;
improve self-efficacy; achieve,, maintain arid sustain recovery; and improve self-care skills.

The Department will monitor sen/ices by reviewing the monthly documentation provided
by the Contractor.

As referenced in the P-37 and Exhibit A of the attached agreement, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council
approval. -.x

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, residents of Glencliff Home
may not receive the substance use disorder management sen/ices needed to achieve, maintain
and sustain recovery.

Area served: Glencliff Home.,
•  -

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, .additional Genera) Funds
will not be requested to support this program:

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

ThtDtparimem of Health and Human Seruicea'M\t$ion i$ to join comniuniliu ond/amilia
in prouidiiig oppartnniliet for citUena to achieve tiealth and independence.
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Subject: SS-2024-GLENCLIFF-01-SUBST-01 Substance Use Disorder Management

FORM NUMBER P.37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and all of its aiiachmcnts shall bccomc public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, conndential or proprictar>' must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in uriiing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT.

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.) State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human
Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Archways
1.4 Coniracior Address

5 Prospect Street, Til ton, nh 03276

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-671-0060

1.6 Account Unit and Class

05-95-091-910010-5710
1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2025

1.8 Price Limitation

J4,20b

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Robert w. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603J) 271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature

^  10/3/2023

1.12 Name and Title of Coniracior Signatory

Michelle LenngRecutive Director

1.13 ^tai'c^cncy'Signaturc ^
DoeuSton«4 by:

j  Date: 10/4/2023
1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Ellen Marie Lapoipte '
Chief Executive Officer

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By; DJrcctor, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Excciitipn)///'applicable)
/—^OoeuMn»d by:

By: 6„:10/V2023

1.17 Approval liy 'ttv^iJovemor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of4 hi
'Contractor Initials^

DaW)/3/2023
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORIVIED. The Stale of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in hlock* t.l
("State"), engages contractor identified In block !.3 ("Contmctor'').
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").-

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject ,to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, .and all obligations of the panies hereundcr, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council

approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in.
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("EfTeclivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, ail Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement docs not become effective, the
State shall have no liability-io the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
.incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contraiy,
all obligations.of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the Stale be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any slate or-federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or othcr>vise modifies'
the appropriation or availabilit>' of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBITS, in whole or in pan,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The,
State shall not be required'to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds

in that Account are reduced or unavailable. „

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAVMENT.

5.1 The co.ntract price, method of payntcni, and terms of payment
arc' identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference;
.5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
coniraty, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8, Tlic
payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the only and the
coniplcle reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the pcrfomiaiice

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by f^.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited,to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequaie.remedy at law for ajiy breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
pcrfom^ance or other equitable remedies against the Sfate.^

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection wiih the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
c.mpioymern opponunily laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the ,
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive ordcrsj rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations end guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with' all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of iliis Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriniinate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age. sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender idcntit)', or gender expression, .and will lake affirmative
action to. prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall- ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or Its.
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
liiade which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,i
or'othcf unlauTul.or improper tncans of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of jhc Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of .ascertaining compliance wiih this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized •
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the Stale's poinl^of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.

Page 2 of4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundcr ("Evcni
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to pcrfomi the Scr\'ices satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failurc.to submit any report required hereundcr; and/or
8.1;3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.'
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
lake any one, or more, or all,'of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a writtcri notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring It to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of lime, lliirty (30) calendar days
from the dale of the notice; and if Ihc Event of Default is.nol timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
afier giving the Contractor notice of tennination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all. payments to be made -under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the conlrdcl price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such t ime as the State determines that

the Contractor has cijred the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to (he Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

,9. TERMINATION.
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other,than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
hot later than fifteen (15) calendar days afier the date of
termination, a report ("Tennination Report") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of icnminalion. In addition, at the Stale's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteeti (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the Stale a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

.10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Propert>'" shall mean
all data, infonhation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
fornnilac, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
rcprescnlalions, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
Icjtcrs, memoranda, papers, and.docurncnts, al) vylicthcr finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the Stale upon demand or upon (ennination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
govemed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior wriiteii approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In (he

pcrfomiance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, emploj'ees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind (he State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provlded by the State to its eniplpyecs.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

. 12.1 Contractor shall provide die State written notice al least fifieen
(IS) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the wriucn consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
isharcs or similar equity interests, or'combincd voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) (he sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

.12,3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior vvriitcn npficc and consent of the State.
12.4 Tlie State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and.
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any firovisions
tcontained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a parly.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its.officers, and employees
from and against .all actions, claims, damages, 'demands,,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys- fecSi arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising ftom death,
personal injury, property damage, iritcllcctual property
infringement, or other claims asscrtcd against the State, its officers,
•or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by .the Contractor, its
.employees, agents, or.subcdniractors. Tlie Sinie shall not be liable
.for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the icnninatioh
of this Agreeinenl.

Page 3 of 4 H
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 Contractor shall,'al its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against alt claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage,in amounts of not less than
SI,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and y
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Pro^xrty
subject-to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by ihe'N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurpre licensed in the Stale ofNew Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfHcer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, <a certificatefs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any succe^or, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The ccrtificatc(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by,reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing tills agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warronis that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation"). ,
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
,N.H. RSA'chaptef 281-A, Coiiiractor shall maintain, and require
any su^qnlractor^pr assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
"Workers' Compensation In connection with aciiyiiies >vhich the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to thiis Agreement. The
[Contractor shall furnish the Contracting OfTlcer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
Tehewal(s) thereof, which shall be 'attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The Stale shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or fbr any other claini or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contrtictor, which might arise under applicable Slate of Now
Hampshire Workers' Compensation 'laws in connecilon with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A Stale's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later cn force any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, wa.ived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the panics
hereto and only after approval of such amcndntcni, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required urtder (he
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy."

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM..

19.1 Tliis Agrcemeni shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal sijpremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this. Agreement is the wording chosen by the
panies to express'iheir mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding '
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the tcrnis of the P-37.(as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement Is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to pr'wlll confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
.110 way" be held to explain, modily, amplify or old in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of-ihis
-Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBiT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional .documehis and take such-further actions as may be
reasonably required to cany out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to iltc. iransactions coritcmplatcd hereby.

25. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions pf
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which niay be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understunding 'between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to.the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of4
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, New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Management

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

.1. Revisions,to Form P-37, General Provisions .

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subdontracts, is amended by adding
■  subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3, Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
■  Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor

compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
'the Health Insurance 'Portability and. Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
•Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing-
.basis and take" corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
'under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

H
SS-2024.GLENCLIFF-01-SU8ST-01 A.1.2 Conlraclor Iniilals

107377073
Archsvays Page 1 of l" Dote
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Management

EXHIBITB

Scope of Services

1. Statement'of Work r; i:

1.1. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder management services in
'  this Agreement to Glenciiff Home residents onsite at Glencliff Home as

coordinated by the Glencliff Home Social Services Department Head, or their
(  designee.

1.2. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.3., For the purposes pf this Agreement, all references to business hours mean
Monday through Friday from 8 am to 4 pm.

1 A. The Contractor shall provide services a minimum of two (2) days per month for
a minimum of 30 minutes each day, as mutually scheduled by the Contractor
and the Department.

1.5. The Contractor shall conduct group meetings focused on managing substance
use disorders..

1.6. The Contractor shall provide recovery coaching to residents designed to; '

1.6.1. Increase knowledge of the individual's substance use disorder;

1.6.2. Strengthen and/or acquire new coping skills; ...

.  1.6.3. Improve self-efficacy;

1.6.4. Achieve, maintain, and sustain recovery; and

1.6.5. Improve self-reported health status and self-care skills.

1.7,. 'The Contractor shall ensure a|l recove^ support services:

1.7.1. Focus on strengths and resilience of the residents; '

1.7.2. Are culturally sensitive and relevant to the diversity of residents
served;

1.7.3. Promote persori-centered and self-directed approaches to care; and '

1.7.4. Are trauma informed and designed to acknowledge the impact of
trauma on individuals* lives and the importance of addressing trauma
in treatment.

1.8. The Contractor shall provide monthly written documentation, by the 15*^ of the
following month, to the Glencliff Home Social Services Department Head, or
their designee, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.8.1. Date and time of services.

1.8.2. Name(s) of resident(s) served. . .

1.9. .Prior to commencing services, the Contractor shall ensure all asSioYfed

SS-2024-GLENCLIFF-01-SUBST-01 B-2.0 ' Contraclor Initials .
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personnel:

1.9.1. ■ Are Certified Recovery Support Workers, (CRSWs) certified by the
NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol and Other Drug Use pursuant to
RSA 330-C; and

1.9.2. ■ Provide signed and notarized authorization to: .

1.9.2.1. Authorize the Department to conduct a Bureau of Elderly
and Adults Services (BEAS) State Registry check at no
cost to the Contractor pursuant to RSA 161 :F:49.

1,10. The Contractor shall comply with all Department requirements, policies, and
procedures relative to infection, prevention, mitigation, and control to mitigate
the risks of disease transmission prior to the commencement of services.-

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually. Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accduntability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with Exhibit, F,- Business Associate Agreement, which is.
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agfeementin
accordance with the terms of 'Exhibit E. DHHS Information Security

■Requirements, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3, Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal

•  • ' legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein,, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith. ,

3.2. Credits and Copyright Ownership
3.2.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other

materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
■ services of the Agreement shairjnclude the following statement. "The

preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by thd State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and^snan

I HSS-2024.GLENCLIFF^1.SUBST-01 B-2.0 Conlractor IrMilals ^
Archways 'p89e2of4



Docusign Envelope ID: D50C7D7D-3552^B9D-9FOA-3E762804BEB7

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: 089D05C6.9510-47AC^B55.78753203A4A7

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder.Management v

EXHIBIT B

Services."

•' 3.2.2, All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall.have
■prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.2.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
'original materials produced, including, but not limited to;
3.2.3..1. Brochures. . ~ "

3.2.3.2. Resource directories.

3.2.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.2.3.4. Posters.

3.2.3.5. Reports.
3.2.4. The Contractor shall not,reproduce any materials produced under the

Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records

4.1. the Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:
4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic .or physical data

'evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred-by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

A.1.2. All records must 'be maintained iri accordance with accounting
•  procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such

costs and.experises, and which are acceptable to the Departrtient, and
,lo include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original

'  evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department;

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereuhder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of'the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the '
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term, of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided

.  however-, that if, ,upon review of the Final Expenditure Report, the Dep^EBent

SS-2024»GLENCLIFF-01-SUBST-01 B-2.0 Conlraclor Initials
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shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

H
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Payment Terms

1 .■ This Agreement is funded by: '

1.1. 31.49% General funds.

1.2. ■ 68.51% Other funds (Agency Income).
2. Payrhent shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures

incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with
the -approved line items, as specified In Exhibit C-1. Budget through C-2,
Budget.

3; The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall erisure
each invoice:

3.1. Includes the. Contractor's Vendor Number issued Opon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

3.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

3.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

3.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs witb each invoice
that may ihcjude, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable;

3.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department'with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

3.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to Glencliff.AP@dhhs.nh.aov or mailed to:

'  Financial Manager
Glencliff Home
.POBox76
Glencliff. NH 03238 ■'

4. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within.thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

;5. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the. Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

SS-2024.GLENaiFF-01-SUBST-01
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6. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

7. 'Audits ^

7.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs,act@dhhs.nh.gov'if
any of the following conditions exist:

7.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2CFR Part "
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

7.1.2." Condition B - the Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the ■='
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,060.000 or more. ,

7.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required"
by Security and Exchange Comm'ission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

7}:2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.rih.gov within 120 days after the close of the

^ Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniforrri,
Adhiinistrative. Requirements. Cost. Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

7.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans., The Contractor'
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

7.3: If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit .an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

7.4. In addition to," and not in any way in limitation of obligations of. the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor, that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federaj audjt exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the-
Contract to which exception has been ta1<en, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

-DS
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Now Hampshire Oopartmontof Health arid Human Services

Compleic ono budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name; Archways

Budget Request for: Substance Abuse

Budget Period SFY 2024

indirect Cost Roto (if applicable) 0.00%

Lino Item' Program Cost • funded by DHHS

i. Salary & Wages S1.160

2. Fringe BeneFils $0

3. Consullants SO

4. Equipment ■ . . •*
Indirect cost rate cannot t>e applied to equ^ment costs per 2 Cfft 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CPR 200. *

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab SO

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

S.(d) Supplies - Medical SO

5.(e) Supplies Office SO

6. Travel S640

7. ^ftware $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications SO

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other ■ Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) SO

Other (please specify) SO

Other (please specify) SO

Other (please soecHy) SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts SO

Total Direct Costs $1,800

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $1,800

Page 2 of 2
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Novy Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Comp/o(e one budget form for oach budge/ period.

Contractor Name: /Archways

Budget Request for: Subslonce Abus9

Budget Period SPY 2025

Indirect Cost Rate,(If applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $1,760

2. Fringe Benefits SO

3. Consultanls SO

4. Equipment
Infract cost nte cannot be applied to epuipment costs per 2 CfR 200.1
end Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. '

l$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational SO

5.(b) Supplies - Lab SO

S.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical SO

5.(6) .Supplies Office SO

6. Travel $640

7. Software SO

6. (a) Other • Marketing/Communications SO

8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)

Other totease spectfyj SO

Other (pieese specify) SO

Other (ploase specify) SO

Other (please specify) SO

9. Subreciplent Contracts SO

. Total Direct Costs $2,400

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $2,400
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Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

..SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. IOOtSOO, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:"

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS
V

us DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION. CONTRACTORS ;
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
.1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages

•  21681-21691). and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
■ award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal ftscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal

^  year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material represenlatioh of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the .
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner ^
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The.Contractor.certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: •
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a.controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition: • , .

.c. 1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to .inform employees at>put
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

. 1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and'
1.2.4. The penalties that may be impos^ upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the

Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the Agreement, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the.employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
"  Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract

officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the. FjgO^I

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
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•  agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of,each affected Agreement;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

,  1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including •
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or .

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, .
law enforcement..or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
' of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2.1.3, 1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The Contractor may Insert in the space provided below the site{s) for the performance of work done
In connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not idenlifted here.

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractors Initials • .
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SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

r.' The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 3t9.of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New,Restrictions on Lobbying,
and 31 O.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Coritraclor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX'
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX - '

r  •Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
Xhild Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and beliefi that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or-on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Merhber of Congre'ss, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendrnent, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and tiy
specific rpehtion sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member o.f Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of.a Member of Congress In cpnneciioii vwith
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
iri accordance with its instructions, see https://omb.repdrt/tcr/201009-0348-022fdoc/20388401

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the award '
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants; loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly,.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction wasTnade or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering Into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title ̂ 1. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
'the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
•$100,000 for each such failure. ■
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SECTION C: CERTtFtCATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER.

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS .

1"'. ■

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the prdvisipns
of Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmenl,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the
. certification set out below. ^

2. The inability of a person to provide the'certification required t>elow will not necessarily result in
denial of participation'in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will

•  be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
In this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into .this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous ceiHification. in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS niay terminate-thls transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to .the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is' submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible," 'lower tier covered
transaction." 'participant," 'person.' "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal." and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the rneanings set out in the Oefinltidns and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See
https://vvww.gbvinfo.gov/app/delails/CFR-20044itle45-voll/CFF?-2004«title45-vol1-part76/context.

6. The. prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
'transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Inelig'ibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tiencovered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in.a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participarit in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it deterrnines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded partl^^os
https://www.ecfr.qov/current/title-22/chapter>V/part-513. Jkf
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9. .Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of.
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally pos.sessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized.under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is .
suspended, debarred, ineligible, pr voluntarily excluded frorri participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS " V
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. Are not p'resently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible; or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions, by any Federal department or agency:
1/1.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(l)(b) of this certincation; and

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to' certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS ''
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier

participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best"of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals: ^ '
13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2.^ Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitled Xertification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Iheligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6/23 Exhibit D - Contractor's Initials .. .
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SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIIVIINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH«BASED

ORGANIZATIONS. WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS. CLEAN AIR AND CLEAN WATER

m. .

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following cerHfication;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

1. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan;

2. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 ij.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of'the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requiremerits;

3. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from dlscr^imiriating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity);

4. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;

5. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

6. The Education Arnendmenls of 1972 (20'U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

7. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination; '

8. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Prograrhs);,28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Departmer^t of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive-Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
^Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub.^L. 112-239, enacted.January 2. 20)-3)-the Pilot

v1.6/23 Exhibit 0 Contractor's Initials,
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Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee WhisUeblower Protections, which protects
• employees against reprisal (or certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts. -ry-

10. Tha Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air.

11. The Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United Stales and regulating quality standards for surface
waters.

The certificate set put below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
. agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certiflcaiion shall be grounds for
®^®P®'^sion of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment. '

In the event a Federal or State 'court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on .the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the.following certification: ' ' ,

1. By signing' and submitting this Agreement* the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

6/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
Federal Requirements Date
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i' "t '

SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

. Public Law 103-227, Part C.- Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or (eased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan

• guarantee. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or. alcohol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the Jaw may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to.$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity. % . ■

'  f

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification: ' '

r  * •

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994.

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials ̂
Federal Requirements Date
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SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTARIIITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding-Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or "greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the Iriiiial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Hurnan Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to.the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5. - program source

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7. Location of the entity

8. Principle place of performance

■9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM.UEI; DUNS#) "
I

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.1 Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC!

Prime.grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

1

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further-
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to.the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

*  j,

Oft

v16/23 " Exhibit p Contractor's Initials . .
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..FORMA.

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

kkxdqa99l8j3
1. The UEI {SAM.gov) numt>er for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 00 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2).$25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

-.NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
• If the answer to #3 above is NO, please ariswer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

10/3/2023

Date:

v1 6/23

Contractor, Name:

r—(>»euSlon«a by;

Name/^"*

Title:

chelle L
L
L
£*2SL
ennon '

Executive Director

Exhibit D
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■ A. Definitions

The following terrns may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or. any 'similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether-physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health information," Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information

disclosed by one.party to the other such as all 'medical, health, financial, public
assistance beriefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information. '

Confidential Information also, includes any and all Information owned or. managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the .Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which cpliection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.-, contractor, contractor's employee,
business .associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incideht" means an act that potentially violates ah explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a

. system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

Conlrsctor Iniliab
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use,-disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless- Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and hot adequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFl, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or "Pr) means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric. records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mojher's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United ■
States Department of Health and Human Services.

.  10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as, provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.?I03.

11.. "Security Rule"'shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health, Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Siibparl C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technojogy standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a' standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR ^

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The (Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
j  except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,

'including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or trarismit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation

• . of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Contractor Initlab
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2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without, first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and at>ove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must- not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions arid must abide by any.additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not.be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA .

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's encryption
capabilities_ ensure secure transmissiori via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may .not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data. ,

3. Encrypted Email. End User-may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if email
.  is encrypted, and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons

authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as .Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User-may only transrnit Confidential Data via cerf/Z/ed ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data

said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

Contractor Initials
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8: Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an opien
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network. •

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
'  or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End

User's mobile device(5) or laptop from which information will be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will structure the
Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
aulo-deletipn cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the'data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted,under
this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention
u  . ^

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store-, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud sen/ice or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

■  4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data. stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security.. A|l servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and antirmalware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

Contractor Initials
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6, The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
iChief InformatiOri Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
•Infrastructure. '

B. • Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its sub-
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor of
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
Operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New

•  Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable -via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National InstituU of Standards and Technology, U, S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
^destruction, and .will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The Written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor-prior to destruction.

' 2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the.terminatlon of this Contract,
Contractor agrees ,to. destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) d'ays of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electrprjic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e.,'tape, disk, paper, etc.).

Contractor'lnltials
H
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication' and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information

where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact .State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor- will be sub-contracting any core functions -of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum rhatch those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign arid comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and peparlment system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements.as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements wilKbe completed
arid signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160:103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance' with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor .to monitor for any changes in'risks, threats, and vuinVabilities that .may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey wilf be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by

.  the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

I.0. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data pffshore prputside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written .consent is obtained from the Information Security Office .leadership
member within the Department.

II. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
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future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach, including but not limited to: credit nioniloring services, mailing costs and
.costs associated with website and,telephone call center services necessaiy due to the
breach.

12..Contractor must, comply with all. applicable statutes and regulations-regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI.at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b)-, HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable health Information and as applicable
under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that-is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the .State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for the
Department . of Information Technology pollciei, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy'Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided In Section
VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer , security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of Nevv Hampshire netwoi1(.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confideritial Data obtained under this Contract
to only those authorized End Users who need such' DHHS Data to perform their official

• duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from' loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
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. d. send emails containing Corifidentlal Information only if encrypted and being sent
to'and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information.

e. limit disclosure,of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only .authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any-
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in.transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and djsclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password)^ must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
Tbis applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application. -v '

Contractor is .responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,-
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the .Confidential Data Is disposed •
of in accordance with this Contract.;

V. LOSS REPORTING

-The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected of confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37:

H
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4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk'level. of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate Breach,
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
' l^ear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as applicable,
in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Priyacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.

DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformatlpnSecurity'C)ffice@dhhs.nh.gov

08
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BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGRggMENT

■ The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
("Agreement"), and any pf .its agents who receive use or have-access to protected health
Information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the "Business Associate." The State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services. "Department" shall be referred
to as the "Covered Entity," The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as "the
parties." ,

. The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and'Accountability Act. Public
Law 104-191. the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XIII,
Subtitle D. Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates; and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

.(1)- Definitions. .-..v

a. The following terms shall have the same meaning as defined, in HIPAA, the HITECH Act,
and Part 2. as. they may be amended from time to lime;

"Breach." "Designated Record Set," "Data Aggregation," Designated Record Set."
"Health Care Operations," "HITECH Act," "Individual," "Privacy Rule." "Required by
law." "Security F?ule." and "Secretary."

b. Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement-that
includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate working with

^  PHI and as applicable. Part .2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity under, the
'Agreement. :v:

c. "Constructively Identifiable," means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of the
information.

d. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used In the Agreement and the BAA. means
protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR. 160.103, limited to the information
created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity, and
includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below. .

e. "Part 2 record" means any patient "Record." relating to a "Patient," and "Patient Identifying
Information." as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Votected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
urireadable, or indecipherable to unauthohze.d individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
,a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards •
Institute.

(2) - Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information...

a. Business Associate shall not .use. disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected. Health'
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlineiiigder
the Agreement. Further,'Business Associate, including but not limited to all \\s.Q\r,e^rs.
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officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part
2. and not use, disdose. maintain, store, or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a
violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR Part 2.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable:

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

II. As required by law, according to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. below;

III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

' IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Entity; and

V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to disclose
PHI "lb any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the Business
Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement with the third party or
subcontractor, that complies wth HIPAA and ensures that all requirements and restrictions
placed on the Business Associate as part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included
in those business associate agreements with the third parly or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not, disclose any PHI in response to a request or demand for
disclosure, such as by a'subpoena or court order, on the basis that It is required by law,
without first notifying Covered Entity so that.Covered Entity can detenmine.how'lo.best protect
the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure, the Business Associate agrees to refrain
from disclosing the PHI and shall cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the
Covered Entity undertakes to contest the request for.disclosure, subpoena, or other legal
process. If applicable relating to Part 2 records,, the Business Associate shall resist any
efforts to access part'2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) Qbiioattons and Activities of Biisiness AssnHatP-

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent unauthorized use
or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule and Security Rule with
regard to electronic PHI. and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer at
■ the following .email address. DHHSPrivacv6fficer@dhhs.nti.Qov after the Business
Associate .has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by its contract,
including ariy known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach has occurred
pblentially exposing or^compromisirig the PHI. This includes inadvertent or accidental
uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected health information. .

c. In the event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with-the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and regulations and
any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time it becomes aware of any known or suspected privacy or security
breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the Covered Entity.
The. risk assessment.shall include, but not be limited to:

I. The nalure.and extent of the protected health information involved, includTn^the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification; [
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II. The unauthpriEed person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health inifcrmation:

III. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed; and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health inforrhation
has been mitigated;

.e.. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the concluslon'of Its
incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to the Covered
Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business Associate's
investigation.

f. . Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of.PHI received from, or created or received
by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the US Secretary of Health and
Human .Services for purposes of determining the Business Associate's and the Covered
Entity's compliance with -HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2. if
applicable.

g. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the BAA-to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and
conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein and an agreement that the
Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party .beneficiary of all the Business
Associate's business associate agreements.

Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate "shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use anddisclosure of
PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business
Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the Agreement.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business.Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a, written request from Covered Entity for an
arnendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall .make such PHI available to .Covered Entity for'
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I

;k. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related to
any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.628.

.1:; Within ten (10) business days 'of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI m accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

m. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting oLP^^i
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within fifcf^)
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business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the BusinessAssociate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify i
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n.' Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any form or
platform. .

■  I. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed tp In the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state
or federal law, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible for as
long as'the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any. or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been
destroyed.

(4) Qblioations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices on the" Covered
Entity's website: https://www.dhhs.nh.Qov/cos/hiDaa/DLiblications.htm in'accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

a. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associaje under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFRSection 164.506 or
45 CFR Section 164.508.

b. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
^  disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,

to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity may
immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a material
breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The Covered Entity
may either immediately terrninate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business
Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous.

a. Defiiiitlons. Laws, and Reoulatorv References. All laws and regulations used, herein, shall
refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A reference in the
Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to .a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2,
means the Section as In effect or as amended.

b. Change in law. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action_ag3
is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associa(e
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comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other
applicable federal and state law.

c. - Data" Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d.-. '• Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA and the Agreement shall
be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate to comply with HIPAA
and 42 CFR Pan 2.

e.i Seoregation. ,lf any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and 'disclosure of PHi; return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) n.l., the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) g. and Paragraph 13 of ;the'
General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreement.

Department of Health and Human Services
Archways ,

The Stale Name of the Contractor ''
rOMuStoA«4>ir: DveuSlgAM) frjr:

46aoe8OlF0Eti2t..

•Signature of Aijthorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Ellen Marie lapointe Michelle Lennon

Name of Authorized .Representative Name" of Authorized Representative

chief Executive officer Executive Director

.Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized' Representative

ld/4/2023 10/3/2023

Date Date
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